

2015 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 12/30/2014 Received By: mshovers
 Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:
 For: Legislative Council -study cmmte 6-2298 By/Representing: Melissa Schmidt & Scott Grosz
 May Contact: Drafter: mshovers
 Subject: Local Gov't - tax incr financing Addl. Drafters:
 Extra Copies: EVM

Submit via email: YES
 Requester's email: melissa.schmidt@legis.wisconsin.gov
 Carbon copy (CC) to: Scott.grosz@legis.wisconsin.gov

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Modifying the requirements for TID increment sharing; limits on special purpose districts in TIDs

Instructions:

See attached. WLCS 0047/1

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	mshovers 1/27/2015			_____			
/P1		wjackson 1/30/2015	jmurphy 1/29/2015	_____	srose 1/29/2015		State S&L
/1			jfrantze 1/30/2015	_____	sbasford 1/30/2015	lparisi 2/11/2015	State S&L

FE Sent For:

@
INTRO

<END>

2015 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 12/30/2014 Received By: mshovers
Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:
For: Legislative Council -study cmmte 6-2298 By/Representing: Melissa Schmidt & Scott Grosz
May Contact: Drafter: mshovers
Subject: Local Gov't - tax incr financing Addl. Drafters:
Extra Copies: EVM

Submit via email: YES
Requester's email: melissa.schmidt@legis.wisconsin.gov
Carbon copy (CC) to: Scott.grosz@legis.wisconsin.gov

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Modifying the requirements for TID increment sharing; limits on special purpose districts in TIDs

Instructions:

See attached. WLCS 0047/1

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	mshovers 1/27/2015			_____			
/P1		wjackson 1/30/2015	jmurphy 1/29/2015	_____	srose 1/29/2015		State S&L
/1			jfrantze 1/30/2015	_____	sbasford 1/30/2015		State S&L

FE Sent For:

<END>

2015 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 12/30/2014 Received By: mshovers
Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:
For: Legislative Council -study cmmte 6-2298 By/Representing: Melissa Schmidt & Scott Grosz
May Contact: Drafter: mshovers
Subject: Local Gov't - tax incr financing Addl. Drafters:
Extra Copies: EVM

Submit via email: YES
Requester's email: melissa.schmidt@legis.wisconsin.gov
Carbon copy (CC) to: Scott.grosz@legis.wisconsin.gov

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Modifying the requirements for TID increment sharing; limits on special purpose districts in TIDs

Instructions:

See attached. WLCS 0047/1

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
/?	mshovers 1/27/2015			_____			
/P1		wjackson 1/29/2015	jmurphy 1/29/2015	_____	srose 1/29/2015		State S&L

FE Sent For:

1/30
JG 1/30

<END>

2015 DRAFTING REQUEST

Bill

Received: 12/30/2014 Received By: mshovers
Wanted: As time permits Same as LRB:
For: Legislative Council -study emmte 6-2298 By/Representing: Melissa Schmidt & Scott Grosz
May Contact: Drafter: mshovers
Subject: Local Gov't - tax incr financing Addl. Drafters:
Extra Copies: EVM

Submit via email: YES
Requester's email: melissa.schmidt@legis.wisconsin.gov
Carbon copy (CC) to: Scott.grosz@legis.wisconsin.gov

Pre Topic:

No specific pre topic given

Topic:

Modifying the requirements for TID increment sharing; limits on special purpose districts in TIDs

Instructions:

See attached. WLCS 0047/1

Drafting History:

<u>Vers.</u>	<u>Drafted</u>	<u>Reviewed</u>	<u>Typed</u>	<u>Proofed</u>	<u>Submitted</u>	<u>Jacketed</u>	<u>Required</u>
--------------	----------------	-----------------	--------------	----------------	------------------	-----------------	-----------------

1? mshovers

1/p1wij/1/29

Jim
1/29

DJK
AET

FE Sent For:

<END>

-1068

1 **AN ACT** to repeal 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. (intro.) a., b., and c.; to renumber 66.1105 (14);
 2 to renumber and amend 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. d.; to amend 66.1105 (2) (i), 66.1105 (6)
 3 (e) 1. a. and (f) 1. a., 66.1105 (14) (title) and 66.1106 (2) (c) and (7) (e) (intro.); and
 4 to create 66.1105 (6) (h) and 66.1105 (14) (b) of the statutes; relating to: modifying
 5 the requirements for sharing tax increments by tax incremental districts, limiting the
 6 participation of certain special purpose districts in tax incremental district financing,
 7 and authorizing any tax incremental district to use allocated tax increments donated
 8 from another tax incremental district.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL PREFATORY NOTE: This draft was prepared for the Joint Legislative Council’s Study Committee on Review of Tax Incremental Financing.

Background

Under the current tax incremental financing program, a city or village may create a tax incremental district (TID) in part of its territory to foster development if at least 50 percent of the area to be included in the TID is blighted, in need of rehabilitation or conservation, suitable for industrial sites, or suitable for mixed-use development. Currently, towns and counties also have a limited ability to create a TID under certain circumstances. Also under current law, once a TID has been created, the Department of Revenue (DOR) calculates the “tax incremental base” value of the TID, which is the equalized value of all taxable property within the TID at the time of its creation. If the development in the TID increases the value of the property in the TID above the base value, a “value increment” is created. That portion of taxes collected on the value increment in excess of the base value is called a “tax increment.” The tax increment is placed in a special fund that may be used only to pay back the project costs of the TID.

A TID is required to terminate, under current law and with some exceptions, once its project costs are paid back. Under one of the

exceptions, the city, village, town, or county (political subdivision) may amend the TID's project plan to allow the positive tax increments from the TID ("donor" TID) to be allocated to another TID ("recipient" TID) also created by the political subdivision. Positive tax increments may not be allocated from a donor TID to a recipient TID unless all of the following conditions have been met:

- Both the donor and recipient TIDs are in the same municipality and have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions (county, school district, technical college district, lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district, and a town sanitary district).
- The donor TID has first satisfied all of its current-year debt service and project cost obligations.
- The allocation of tax increments is approved by the Joint Review Board (JRB).

If both the donor TID and recipient TID were created before October 1, 1995 (or before October 1, 1996, for first class cities) the donor TID may, in general, allocate its positive tax increments for up to 10 years if all of the following conditions are met:

- The donor TID and the recipient TID have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.
- The donor TID is able to demonstrate, based upon the positive tax increments that are currently generated, that it has sufficient revenues to pay for all project costs that have been incurred under the project plan for the district and sufficient surplus to pay for some of the eligible costs of the recipient TID.

Also, under current law, not all types of TIDs may be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments. Donated tax increments may only be used if one of the following applies to the recipient TID:

- The project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination.
- The recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the TID is blighted or in need of rehabilitation.
- The recipient TID is a mixed-use or industrial-use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.
- The recipient TID is an environmental remediation TID.

The Draft

Under the draft, for a TID that exists on the effective date of the draft, TIDs may share tax increments notwithstanding the fact that they do not have the same overlying taxation jurisdictions if the dissimilarity is because one of the districts includes a lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation, or a town sanitary district (special districts). Also, for TIDs created on or after the day that the draft takes effect, special districts may not participate in the financing of a TID. Lastly, this draft allows any type of TID to be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments.

1 **SECTION 1.** 66.1105 (2) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 66.1105 (2) (i) "Tax increment" means that amount obtained by multiplying the total
3 county, city, school and other local general property taxes levied on all taxable property within
4 a tax incremental district in a year by a fraction having as a numerator the value increment for
5 that year in the district and as a denominator that year's equalized value of all taxable property
6 in the district. In any year, a tax increment is "positive" if the value increment is positive; it
7 is "negative" if the value increment is negative. With regard to a tax incremental district
8 created on or after the effective date of this paragraph ... [LRB inserts date], a tax increment
9 shall not include general property taxes levied by a lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50
10 (4q), a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under ch. 33, or a
11 town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the definition of a tax increment to exclude general taxes levied by lake sanitary districts, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts for any TID created on or after the effective date of this draft. It also excludes these general taxes from the allocation of tax increments from a donor TID to a recipient TID if the both TIDs do not have the same overlying taxing districts because either TID includes one or more of these taxing districts.

12 **SECTION 2.** 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. and (f) 1. a. of the statutes are amended to read:

1 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. ~~The~~ Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax incremental
2 district, the positive tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the recipient tax
3 incremental district have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

4 (f) 1. a. ~~The~~ Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax incremental district, the positive
5 tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the recipient tax incremental district have the
6 same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

NOTE: This SECTION provides an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying taxing jurisdiction in order for positive tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. The exception is created in SECTION 5 of the draft and applies to an existing TID.

7 SECTION 3. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. (intro.) a., b., and c. of the statutes are repealed.

NOTE: This SECTION repeals the language that allows an allocation of tax increments to be used by a recipient TID only if one of the following applies: (1) the project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination; (2) the recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the district is blighted or in need of rehabilitation; or (3) the recipient is a mixed-use or industrial use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.

8 SECTION 4. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. d. of the statutes is renumbered subd. 5. and amended to
9 read:

10 66.1105 (6) (f) 5. ~~The recipient district is an~~ An environmental remediation tax
11 incremental district created under s. 66.1106 may be a recipient district and may use any
12 allocated tax increments that are allocated to it under this paragraph.

NOTE: This SECTION clarifies that tax increments generated from a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats., may still be allocated to, and used by, an environmental remediation TID.

13 SECTION 5. 66.1105 (6) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

1 66.1105 (6) (h) With regard to a tax incremental district that exists on the effective date
2 of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], positive tax increments generated by one district may
3 be allocated to another district, as described under pars. (e) and (f), if the two districts do not
4 have the same overlying taxation districts because either the donor or recipient district
5 includes one or more of the following:

- 6 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).
- 7 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under ch. 33.
- 8 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: This SECTION creates an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions in order for tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. With regard to a TID that exists on the effective date of the draft, positive tax increments generated by one TID may be allocated to another TID even if the two districts do not have the same overlying taxing districts if their dissimilarity because either the donor or the recipient TID has one or more special purpose districts not shared by the other.

9 **SECTION 6.** 66.1105 (14) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 66.1105 (14) (title) USE OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING FOR INLAND LAKE PROTECTION
11 AND REHABILITATION PROHIBITED, LIMITING PARTICIPATION OF CERTAIN LAKE AND SANITARY
12 DISTRICTS.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the title of the section of the statutes to include reference to the content created in SECTION 7 of the draft.

13 **SECTION 7.** 66.1105 (14) of the statutes is renumbered 66.1105 (14) (a).

14 **SECTION 8.** 66.1105 (14) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

15 66.1105 (14) (b) For a tax incremental district that is created on or after the effective
16 date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], none of the following special purpose districts
17 may participate in the financing of a tax incremental district:

- 1 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).
- 2 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under ch. 33.
- 3 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: SECTION 7 rennumbers a provision of the statutes related to inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts and SECTION 8 provides that lake sanitary districts, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts may not participate in the financing of any TID created on or after the effective date of this draft.

4 SECTION 9. 66.1106 (2) (c) and (7) (e) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

5 66.1106 (2) (c) Notwithstanding par. (a) or (b), or sub. (7) (d) 1. or (11) (a), if the
6 governing body of a political subdivision determines that all eligible costs of an environmental
7 remediation tax incremental district that it created will be paid before the date specified in sub.
8 (11) (b), the governing body of that political subdivision may adopt a resolution requesting
9 that the department allocate positive environmental remediation tax increments generated by
10 that donor environmental remediation tax incremental district to pay the eligible costs of
11 another environmental remediation tax incremental district created by that governing body or
12 to pay project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), of a tax incremental district created under
13 s. 66.1105 and located in the same overlying taxing jurisdictions ~~and that satisfies one of the~~
14 ~~requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.~~ A resolution under this paragraph must be adopted
15 before the expiration of the period of certification.

16 (7) (e) (intro.) Notwithstanding par. (d), if the governing body of a political subdivision
17 adopts a resolution described in sub. (2) (c), it shall provide a copy of the resolution to the
18 department. The department shall authorize a positive environmental remediation tax
19 increment generated by a donor district, as described in sub. (2) (c), to the political subdivision
20 that incurred eligible costs to remediate environmental pollution in another district within that
21 political subdivision or that incurred project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), for a tax

1 incremental district within that political subdivision that was created under s. 66.1105 and that
2 satisfies one of the requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2, as described in sub. (2) (c), until
3 the earlier of the following occurs:

NOTE: This SECTION updates a cross-reference to make sure that tax increments generated in an environmental remediation TID may still be a donor TID and allocate positive tax increments to a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats.

4

(END)



MES...
WJ

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

Proofer:
Please
check
autorefs.
tv! ✓

Prof
one ✓

jm

FN 1/27
~~wanted:~~
1/30 Today
Please

1 **AN ACT ...; relating to:** modifying the requirements for sharing tax increments by tax
2 incremental districts, limiting the participation of certain special purpose districts in tax
3 incremental district financing, and authorizing any tax incremental district to use allocated
4 tax increments donated from another tax incremental district.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

JLC

FE-SC

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL PREFATORY NOTE: This draft ^{was} prepared for the Joint Legislative Council's Study Committee on Review of Tax Incremental Financing.

Background

Under the current tax incremental financing program, a city or village may create a tax incremental district (TID) in part of its territory to foster development if at least 50 percent of the area to be included in the TID is blighted, in need of rehabilitation or conservation, suitable for industrial sites, or suitable for mixed-use development. Currently, towns and counties also have a limited ability to create a TID under certain circumstances. Also under current law, once a TID has been created, the Department of Revenue (DOR) calculates the "tax incremental base" value of the TID, which is the equalized value of all taxable property within the TID at the time of its creation. If the development in the TID increases the value of the property in the TID above the base

I formatted
props. to
be below,
but 0.05 above
for headings.

bill

value, a "value increment" is created. That portion of taxes collected on the value increment in excess of the base value is called a "tax increment." The tax increment is placed in a special fund that may be used only to pay back the project costs of the TID.

A TID is required to terminate, under current law and with some exceptions, once its project costs are paid back. Under one of the exceptions, the city, village, town, or county (political subdivision) may amend the TID's project plan to allow the positive tax increments from the TID ("donor" TID) to be allocated to another TID ("recipient" TID) also created by the political subdivision. Positive tax increments may not be allocated from a donor TID to a recipient TID unless all of the following conditions have been met:

- Both the donor and recipient TIDs are in the same municipality and have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions (county, school district, technical college district, lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district, and a town sanitary district).
- The donor TID has first satisfied all of its current-year debt service and project cost obligations.
- The allocation of tax increments is approved by the Joint Review Board (JRB).

If both the donor TID and recipient TID were created before October 1, 1995 (or before October 1, 1996, for first class cities) the donor TID may, in general, allocate its positive tax increments for up to 10 years if all of the following conditions are met:

- The donor TID and the recipient TID have the same overlying ^{taxation} ~~taxing~~ jurisdictions.
- The donor TID is able to demonstrate, based upon the positive tax increments that are currently generated, that it has sufficient revenues to pay for all project costs that have been incurred under the project plan for the district and sufficient surplus to pay for some of the eligible costs of the recipient TID.

Also, under current law, not all types of TIDs may be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments. Donated tax increments may only be used if one of the following applies to the recipient TID:

- The project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination.
- The recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the TID is blighted or in need of rehabilitation.
- The recipient TID is a mixed-use or industrial-use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.
- The recipient TID is an environmental remediation TID.

The Draft

Under the ~~draft~~, for a TID that exists on the effective date of the ~~draft~~, TIDs may share tax increments notwithstanding the fact that they do not have the same overlying taxation jurisdictions if the dissimilarity is because one of the districts includes a lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation, or a town sanitary district (special districts). Also, for TIDs created on or after the day that the ~~draft~~ takes effect, special districts may not participate in the financing of a TID. Lastly, this ~~draft~~ allows any type of TID to be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments.

as the donee districts

district bill such donor

bill

- 1 SECTION 1. 66.1105 (2) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:
- 2 66.1105 (2) (i) "Tax increment" means that amount obtained by multiplying the
- 3 total county, city, school and other local general property taxes levied on all taxable

1 property within a tax incremental district in a year by a fraction having as a
 2 numerator the value increment for that year in the district and as a denominator that
 3 year's equalized value of all taxable property in the district. In any year, a tax
 4 increment is "positive" if the value increment is positive; it is "negative" if the value
 5 increment is negative. With regard to a tax incremental district created on or after
 6 the effective date of this paragraph... [LRB inserts date], a tax increment ^{max} shall not
 7 include general property taxes levied by a lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50
 8 (4q), a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under ch.
 9 33, or a town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the definition of a tax increment to exclude general taxes levied by lake sanitary districts, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts for any TID created on or after the effective date of this draft. It also excludes these general taxes from the allocation of tax increments from a donor TID to a recipient TID if the both TIDs do not have the same overlying taxing districts because either TID includes one or more of these taxing districts.

10 SECTION 2. 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. and (f) 1. a. of the statutes ~~are~~ amended to read:

11 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. The Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax
 12 incremental district, the positive tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the
 13 recipient tax incremental district have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

14 (f) 1. a. The Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax incremental district,
 15 the positive tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the recipient tax
 16 incremental district have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

NOTE: This SECTION provides an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying taxing jurisdiction in order for positive tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. The exception is created in SECTION 5 of the draft and applies to an existing TID.

17 SECTION 3. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. (intro.) a., b., and c. of the statutes ~~are~~ repealed.

NOTE: This SECTION repeals the language that allows an allocation of tax increments to be used by a recipient TID only if one of the following applies: (1) the project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination; (2) the recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the district is

- { Sec. #; RP; 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. a.
- { Sec. #; RP; 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. b.
- { Sec. #; RP; 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. c.

From the calculation of a tax increment

bill

The bill

USE R.A.

SECTION 3

blighted or in need of rehabilitation; or (3) the recipient is a mixed-use or industrial use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.

1 SECTION 4. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. d. of the statutes is renumbered ^{subd. 5.} and

AL 66.1105 (6) (f)

2 amended to read:

3 66.1105 (6) (f) 5. ~~The recipient district is an~~ An environmental remediation tax
4 incremental district created under s. 66.1106 may be a recipient district and may use
5 any ~~allocated~~ tax increments that are allocated to it under this paragraph.

NOTE: This SECTION clarifies that tax increments generated from a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats., may still be allocated to, and used by, an environmental remediation TID.

Create A.R.A

6 SECTION ~~5.~~ 66.1105 (6) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

7 66.1105 (6) (h) With regard to a tax incremental district that exists on the
8 effective date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], positive tax increments
9 generated by one district may be allocated to another district, as described under
10 pars. (e) and (f), if the two districts do not have the same overlying taxation districts
11 because either the donor or recipient district includes one or more of the following:

- 12 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).
- 13 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under
- 14 ch. 33.
- 15 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: This SECTION creates an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying ~~taxing~~ jurisdictions in order for tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. With regard to a TID that exists on the effective date of the ~~draft~~ ^{bill}, positive tax increments generated by one TID may be allocated to another TID even if the two districts do not have the same overlying ~~taxing~~ ^{taxation} districts if their dissimilarity, because either the donor or the recipient TID has one or more special purpose districts not shared by the other.

16 SECTION 6. 66.1105 ^{is} (14) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 66.1105 (14) (title) USE OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING FOR INLAND LAKE
 2 PROTECTION AND REHABILITATION PROHIBITED, LIMITING PARTICIPATION OF CERTAIN LAKE
 3 AND SANITARY DISTRICTS.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the title of the section of the statutes to include
 reference to the content created in SECTION of the draft. bill

4 **SECTION 7.** 66.1105 (14) of the statutes is renumbered 66.1105 (14) (a).
 create A.R.C. ✓

5 **SECTION 8.** 66.1105 (14) (b) of the statutes is created to read:
 create A.R.C. ✓

6 66.1105 (14) (b) For a tax incremental district that is created on or after the
 7 effective date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], none of the following special
 8 purpose districts may participate in the financing of a tax incremental district:

- 9 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).
- 10 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under
 11 ch. 33.
- 12 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: SECTION rennumbers a provision of the statutes related to inland lake
 protection and rehabilitation districts and SECTION provides that lake sanitary districts,
 public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts may
 not participate in the financing of any TID created on or after the effective date of this
 draft.

13 **SECTION 9.** 66.1106 (2) (c) and (7) (e) (intro) of the statutes are amended to read:
 A.R.C. ✓

14 66.1106 (2) (c) Notwithstanding par. (a) or (b), or sub. (7) (d) 1. or (11) (a), if the
 15 governing body of a political subdivision determines that all eligible costs of an
 16 environmental remediation tax incremental district that it created will be paid
 17 before the date specified in sub. (11) (b), the governing body of that political
 18 subdivision may adopt a resolution requesting that the department allocate positive
 19 environmental remediation tax increments generated by that donor environmental
 20 remediation tax incremental district to pay the eligible costs of another
 21 environmental remediation tax incremental district created by that governing body

SECTION 9

1 or to pay project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), of a tax incremental district
 2 created under s. 66.1105 and located in the same overlying taxing jurisdictions and
 3 ~~that satisfies one of the requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.~~ A resolution under
 4 this paragraph must be adopted before the expiration of the period of certification.

Soc #; Am; 66.1106 (7)(e)

5 (7) (e) (intro.) Notwithstanding par. (d), if the governing body of a political
 6 subdivision adopts a resolution described in sub. (2) (c), it shall provide a copy of the
 7 resolution to the department. The department shall authorize a positive
 8 environmental remediation tax increment generated by a donor district, as described
 9 in sub. (2) (c), to the political subdivision that incurred eligible costs to remediate
 10 environmental pollution in another district within that political subdivision or that
 11 incurred project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), for a tax incremental district
 12 within that political subdivision that was created under s. 66.1105 ~~and that satisfies~~
 13 ~~one of the requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.~~ as described in sub. (2) (c), until *★*
 14 the earlier of the following occurs:

NOTE: *These* ~~This~~ SECTION updates a cross-reference to make sure that tax increments
 generated in an environmental remediation TID may still be a donor TID and allocate
 positive tax increments to a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats.

(END)

15



State of Wisconsin
2015 - 2016 LEGISLATURE

LRB-1068/P1
MES:wlj:jm

STAYS

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

Friday,
1/30

Please
check
autorefs.

Regan

1 AN ACT ~~to repeal~~ 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. (intro.), 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. a., 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.
2 b. and 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. c.; **to renumber** 66.1105 (14); **to renumber and amend**
3 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. d.; **to amend** 66.1105 (2) (i), 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a., 66.1105 (6)
4 (f) 1. a., 66.1105 (14) (title), 66.1106 (2) (c) and 66.1106 (7) (e) (intro.); and **to**
5 **create** 66.1105 (6) (h) and 66.1105 (14) (b) of the statutes; **relating to:**
6 modifying the requirements for sharing tax increments by tax incremental
7 districts, limiting the participation of certain special purpose districts in tax
8 incremental district financing, and authorizing any tax incremental district to
9 use allocated tax increments donated from another tax incremental district.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

This bill is explained in the NOTES provided by the Joint Legislative Council in the bill.

For further information see the **state and local** fiscal estimate, which will be printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

JOINT LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL PREFATORY NOTE: This bill was prepared for the Joint Legislative Council's Study Committee on Review of Tax Incremental Financing.

Background

Under the current tax incremental financing program, a city or village may create a tax incremental district (TID) in part of its territory to foster development if at least 50 percent of the area to be included in the TID is blighted, in need of rehabilitation or conservation, suitable for industrial sites, or suitable for mixed-use development. Currently, towns and counties also have a limited ability to create a TID under certain circumstances. Also under current law, once a TID has been created, the Department of Revenue (DOR) calculates the "tax incremental base" value of the TID, which is the equalized value of all taxable property within the TID at the time of its creation. If the development in the TID increases the value of the property in the TID above the base value, a "value increment" is created. That portion of taxes collected on the value increment in excess of the base value is called a "tax increment." The tax increment is placed in a special fund that may be used only to pay back the project costs of the TID.

A TID is required to terminate, under current law and with some exceptions, once its project costs are paid back. Under one of the exceptions, the city, village, town, or county (political subdivision) may amend the TID's project plan to allow the positive tax increments from the TID ("donor" TID) to be allocated to another TID ("recipient" TID) also created by the political subdivision. Positive tax increments may not be allocated from a donor TID to a recipient TID unless all of the following conditions have been met:

- Both the donor and recipient TIDs are in the same municipality and have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions (county, school district, technical college district, lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district, and a town sanitary district).
- The donor TID has first satisfied all of its current-year debt service and project cost obligations.

- The allocation of tax increments is approved by the Joint Review Board (JRB).

If both the donor TID and recipient TID were created before October 1, 1995 (or before October 1, 1996, for first class cities) the donor TID may, in general, allocate its positive tax increments for up to 10 years if all of the following conditions are met:

- The donor TID and the recipient TID have the same overlying taxation jurisdictions.
- The donor TID is able to demonstrate, based upon the positive tax increments that are currently generated, that it has sufficient revenues to pay for all project costs that have been incurred under the project plan for the district and sufficient surplus to pay for some of the eligible costs of the recipient TID.

Also, under current law, not all types of TIDs may be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments. Donated tax increments may only be used if one of the following applies to the recipient TID:

- The project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination.
- The recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the TID is blighted or in need of rehabilitation.
- The recipient TID is a mixed-use or industrial-use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.
- The recipient TID is an environmental remediation TID.

The Bill

Under the bill, for TIDs that exist on the effective date of the bill, such donor TIDs may share tax increments notwithstanding the fact that they do not have the same overlying taxation jurisdictions as the donee districts if the dissimilarity is because one of the districts includes a lake sanitary district, a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district, or a town sanitary district (special districts). Also, for TIDs created on or after the day the bill takes effect, special districts may not participate in the

financing of a TID. Lastly, this bill allows any type of TID to be a recipient TID and use donated tax increments.

1 **SECTION 1.** 66.1105 (2) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 66.1105 (2) (i) "Tax increment" means that amount obtained by multiplying the
3 total county, city, school and other local general property taxes levied on all taxable
4 property within a tax incremental district in a year by a fraction having as a
5 numerator the value increment for that year in the district and as a denominator that
6 year's equalized value of all taxable property in the district. In any year, a tax
7 increment is "positive" if the value increment is positive; it is "negative" if the value
8 increment is negative. With regard to a tax incremental district created on or after
9 the effective date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], the calculation of a tax
10 increment may not include general property taxes levied by a lake sanitary district,
11 as defined in s. 30.50 (4q), a public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district
12 organized under ch. 33, or a town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch.
13 60.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the definition of a tax increment to exclude general taxes levied by lake sanitary districts, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts from the calculation of a tax increment for any TID created on or after the effective date of this bill. The bill also excludes these general taxes from the allocation of tax increments from a donor TID to a recipient TID.

Create A.R. A

14 **SECTION 2.** 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 66.1105 (6) (e) 1. a. The Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax
16 incremental district, the positive tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the
17 recipient tax incremental district have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

Create A.R. B

18 **SECTION 3.** 66.1105 (6) (f) 1. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 66.1105 (6) (f) 1. a. The Except as provided in par. (h), the donor tax incremental
20 district, the positive tax increments of which are to be allocated, and the recipient
21 tax incremental district have the same overlying taxing jurisdictions.

Use ARs A and B
↓
2 and 3

NOTE: These SECTIONS create a cross-reference to an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying taxation jurisdiction in order for positive tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. The exception is created in SECTION 9 of the bill and applies to an existing TID.

create A.R.C

1 SECTION 4. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. (intro.) of the statutes is repealed.

create A.R.D

2 SECTION 5. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. a. of the statutes is repealed.

create A.R.E

3 SECTION 6. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. b. of the statutes is repealed.

create A.R.F

4 SECTION 7. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. c. of the statutes is repealed.

Use ARs C, D, E, F → 4, 5, 6, and 7

NOTE: These SECTIONS repeal the language that allows an allocation of tax increments to be used by a recipient TID only if one of the following applies: (1) the project costs in the recipient TID are used to create, provide, or rehabilitate low-cost housing or to remediate environmental contamination; (2) the recipient TID was created upon a finding that not less than 50 percent, by area, of the real property within the district is blighted or in need of rehabilitation; or (3) the recipient is a mixed-use or industrial use district that has been designated as a distressed TID or a severely distressed TID.

5 SECTION 8. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2. d. of the statutes is renumbered 66.1105 (6) (f) 5.

6 and amended to read:

7 66.1105 (6) (f) 5. ~~The recipient district is an~~ An environmental remediation tax
8 incremental district created under s. 66.1106 may be a recipient district and may use
9 any allocated tax increments that are allocated to it under this paragraph.

NOTE: This SECTION clarifies that tax increments generated from a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats., may still be allocated to, and used by, an environmental remediation TID.

10 SECTION 9. 66.1105 (6) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

11 66.1105 (6) (h) With regard to a tax incremental district that exists on the
12 effective date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], positive tax increments
13 generated by one district may be allocated to another district, as described under
14 pars. (e) and (f), if the two districts do not have the same overlying taxation districts
15 because either the donor or recipient district includes one or more of the following:

16 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).

1 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under
2 ch. 33.

3 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: This SECTION creates an exception to the requirement that the donor and recipient TIDs must have the same overlying taxation jurisdictions in order for tax increments to be allocated to the recipient. With regard to a TID that exists on the effective date of the bill, positive tax increments generated by one TID may be allocated to another TID even if the two districts do not have the same overlying taxation districts if their dissimilarity is because either the donor or the recipient TID has one or more special purpose districts not shared by the other.

4 **SECTION 10.** 66.1105 (14) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 66.1105 (14) (title) USE OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING FOR INLAND LAKE
6 PROTECTION AND REHABILITATION PROHIBITED, LIMITING PARTICIPATION OF CERTAIN LAKE
7 AND SANITARY DISTRICTS.

NOTE: This SECTION amends the title of the section of the statutes to include reference to the content created in SECTION 12 of the bill.

8 **SECTION 11.** 66.1105 (14) of the statutes is renumbered 66.1105 (14) (a).

9 **SECTION 12.** 66.1105 (14) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

10 66.1105 (14) (b) For a tax incremental district that is created on or after the
11 effective date of this paragraph [LRB inserts date], none of the following special
12 purpose districts may participate in the financing of a tax incremental district:

13 1. A lake sanitary district, as defined in s. 30.50 (4q).

14 2. A public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district organized under
15 ch. 33.

16 3. A town sanitary district organized under subch. IX of ch. 60.

NOTE: SECTION 11 renumbers a provision of the statutes related to inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts and SECTION 12 provides that lake sanitary districts, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation districts, and town sanitary districts may not participate in the financing of any TID created on or after the effective date of this bill.

17 **SECTION 13.** 66.1106 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 66.1106 (2) (c) Notwithstanding par. (a) or (b), or sub. (7) (d) 1. or (11) (a), if the
2 governing body of a political subdivision determines that all eligible costs of an
3 environmental remediation tax incremental district that it created will be paid
4 before the date specified in sub. (11) (b), the governing body of that political
5 subdivision may adopt a resolution requesting that the department allocate positive
6 environmental remediation tax increments generated by that donor environmental
7 remediation tax incremental district to pay the eligible costs of another
8 environmental remediation tax incremental district created by that governing body
9 or to pay project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), of a tax incremental district
10 created under s. 66.1105 and located in the same overlying taxing jurisdictions and
11 ~~that satisfies one of the requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.~~ A resolution under
12 this paragraph must be adopted before the expiration of the period of certification.

13 **SECTION 14.** 66.1106 (7) (e) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 66.1106 (7) (e) (intro.) Notwithstanding par. (d), if the governing body of a
15 political subdivision adopts a resolution described in sub. (2) (c), it shall provide a
16 copy of the resolution to the department. The department shall authorize a positive
17 environmental remediation tax increment generated by a donor district, as described
18 in sub. (2) (c), to the political subdivision that incurred eligible costs to remediate
19 environmental pollution in another district within that political subdivision or that
20 incurred project costs, as defined in s. 66.1105 (2) (f), for a tax incremental district
21 within that political subdivision that was created under s. 66.1105 ~~and that satisfies~~
22 ~~one of the requirements under s. 66.1105 (6) (f) 2.,~~ as described in sub. (2) (c), until
23 the earlier of the following occurs:

NOTE: These SECTIONS update a cross-reference to make sure that tax increments generated in an environmental remediation TID may still be a donor TID and allocate positive tax increments to a TID created under s. 66.1105, stats.

1

(END)

Parisi, Lori

From: Schmidt, Melissa
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 3:06 PM
To: LRB.Legal
Subject: RE: Bills Ready for Jacketing

Sorry! See below...

Melissa Schmidt

Senior Staff Attorney
Wisconsin Legislative Council
(608) 266-2298

From: LRB.Legal
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 3:04 PM
To: Schmidt, Melissa
Subject: RE: Bills Ready for Jacketing

For Senate or Assembly please on each?

From: Schmidt, Melissa
Sent: Wednesday, February 11, 2015 3:02 PM
To: LRB.Legal
Cc: Grosz, Scott; Young, Tracey; Mautz, Kelly
Subject: Bills Ready for Jacketing

To Whom it May Concern:

The following bill drafts are ready for jacketing:

1. LRB-0918/1 (Assembly)
2. LRB-0932/1 (Assembly)
3. LRB-0922/1 (Assembly)
4. LRB-1063/1 (Senate)
5. LRB-1064/1 (Senate)
6. LRB-1065/1 (Senate)
7. LRB-1066/1 (Senate)
8. LRB-1067/1 (Senate)
9. LRB-1068/1 (Senate)
10. LRB-1069/1 (Senate)
11. LRB-1070/1 (Senate)

Thank you,